
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 1  

 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF STATEMENT OF ISSUES (5320) 

 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
KENT D. HARRIS 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
DAVID E. BRICE 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 269443 

1300 I Street, Suite 125 
P.O. Box 944255 
Sacramento, CA  94244-2550 
Telephone:  (916) 324-8010 
Facsimile:  (916) 327-8643 
E-mail: David.Brice@doj.ca.gov 

Attorneys for Complainant 
 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues 
Against: 

GARY GRAY PHARMACIST DBA 
ComPLEX 

Community Pharmacy Permit Applicant 

Sterile Compounding Pharmacy License 
Applicant. 

Respondent. 

Case No. 5320 

WITHDRAWAL OF 
STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

 

 

On July 15, 2016, Gary Gray Pharmacist dba ComPLEX (Respondent) withdrew his appeal 

and request for a hearing on the denials of his applications for a Sterile Compounding Pharmacy 

License and a Community Pharmacy Permit by the Board of Pharmacy.  Accordingly, Statement 

of Issues No. 5320, filed against Respondent, is withdrawn without prejudice and the denials of 

his applications are affirmed.   

/// 

/// 

/// 
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 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF STATEMENT OF ISSUES (5320) 

 

The earliest date on which Respondent may reapply for a Sterile Compounding Pharmacy 

License and a Community Pharmacy Permit is one year after the effective date of the denial.  

That effective date is the issue date of this Withdrawal of Statement of Issues. 

DATED:  July 15, 2016 

       

 
 VIRGINIA HEROLD 

Executive Officer 
Board of Pharmacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

 
SA2014118304 

12348164.doc 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
KENT D. HARRIS 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
DAVID E. BRICE 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 269443 


1300 I Street, Suite 125 

P.O. Box 944255 

Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 

Telephone: (916) 324-8010 

Facsimile: (916) 327-8643 

E-mail: David.Brice@doj.ca.gov 


Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter ofthe Statement oflssues 
Against: 

GARY GRAY PHARMACIST dba 
ComPLEX 

Community Pharmacy Permit Applicant 

Sterile Compounding Pharmacy License 
Applicant. 

Case No. 5320 


STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

Complainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

I. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Statement oflssues solely in her official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of Consumer 

Affairs. 

2. On or about May 30, 2014, the Board received an application for a Sterile 

Compounding Pharmacy License from Gary Gray Pharmacist dba ComPLEX (Respondent). On 

or about May 29, 2014, Gary Gray certified under penalty of perjury to the truthfulness of all 

statements, answers, and representations in the application. The Board denied the application on 

July 18,2014. 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

mailto:David.Brice@doj.ca.gov
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3. On or about June 19,2014, the Board received an application for a Community 

Pharmacy Permit from Respondent. On or about June 16, 2014, Gary Gray certified under penalty 

ofperjury to the truthfulness of all statements, answers, and representations in the application. 

The Board denied the application on October 31, 2014. 

4. Gary Gray was issued Registered Pharmacist License No. RPH 24141 on August 13, 

1965. The license will expire on October 31,2015, unless renewed. 

STATUTORY REFERENCES 

5. This Statement oflssues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 

Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references 

are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

6. Section 480 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

(a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the applicant has 
one of the following: 

(3)(A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question, 
would be grounds for suspension or revocation oflicense. 

(B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only if the crime or act is 
substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for 
which application is made. 

" 

7. Section 4024 of the Code states: 

"(a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), 'dispense' means the furnishing of drugs or 
devices upon a prescription from a physician, dentist, optometrist, podiatrist, veterinarian, or 
naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3640.7, or upon an order to furnish drugs or transmit a 
prescription from a certified nurse-midwife, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, naturopathic 
doctor pursuant to Section 3640.5, or pharmacist acting within the scope ofhis or her practice. 

(b) 'Dispense' also means and refers to the furnishing of drugs or devices directly to a 
patient by a physician, dentist, optometrist, podiatrist, or veterinarian, or by a certified nurse
midwife, nurse practitioner, naturopathic doctor, or physician assistant acting within the scope of 
his or her practice." 
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8. Section 4026 of the Code states: '"Furnish' means to supply by any means, by sale or 

otherwise." 

9. Section 4037 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

"(a) 'Pharmacy' means an area, place, or premises licensed by the board in which the 
profession of pharmacy is practiced and where prescriptions are compounded. "Pharmacy'' 
includes, but is not limited to, any area, place, or premises described in a license issued by the 
board wherein controlled substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices are stored, 
possessed, prepared, manufactured, derived, compounded, or repackaged, and from which the 
controlled substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices are furnished, sold, or dispensed at 
retail. 

, 

10. Section 4110 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

"(a) No person shall conduct a pharmacy in the State of California unless he or she has 
obtained a license from the board. A license shall be required for each pharmacy owned or 
operated by a specific person .... 

, 

II. Section 4127.1 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

" 

(b) A license to compound sterile drug products shall be issued only to a location that is 
licensed as a pharmacy and shall be issued only to the owner of the pharmacy licensed at that 
location. 

, 

12. Section 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

" 

(c) The board may refuse a license to any applicant guilty ofunprofessional conduct .... " 

13. Section 4301 ofthe Code states, in pertinent part: 

" ... Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following: 
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(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United States 
regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

(o) Violatiog or attemptiog to violate, directly or iodirectly, or assisting in or abetting the 
violation of or conspiriog to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations govemiog pharmacy, iocludiog regulations established by the 
board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency. 

, 

DRUGS 

Federal Law 

14. Under federal law, medical cannabis is listed as a schedule I controlled substance as 

"any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contaios any quantity ofcannabimimetic 

agents." 21 U.S. C.§ 812, Schedule I, (d)(!). Schedule I drugs have "no currently accepted 

medical use io treatment io the United States." 21 U.S.C. § 812(b)(l)(B). It is unlawful to 

knowiogly or iotentionally dispense a schedule I controlled substance unless authorized by the 

Attorney General of the United States. 21 U.S.C. §§ 822(b), 841(a)(1). 

State Law 

15. In California, marijuana is a schedule I controlled substance. Health & Saf. Code§ 

11054, subd. (d)(13). "Marijuana" means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa L., whether 

growiog or not; the seeds thereof; the resio extracted from any part of the plant; and every 

compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin. 

Health & Saf. Code§ 11018. "Concentrated cannabis" means the separated resin, whether crude 

or purified, obtained from marijuana. Health & Saf. Code, § 11006.5. It is unlawful to possess or 

cultivate marijuana and concentrated cannabis io California. Health & Saf. Code§§ 11357, 11358, 

11359, 11360. It is unlawful to dispense any synthetic cannabiooid compound under California 

state law. Health & Saf. Code § 11357.5. 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA IN CALIFORNIA 

16. In California, the state laws prohibitiog possession or cultivation of marijuana do not 

apply "to a patient, or to a patient's primary caregiver, who possesses or cultivates marijuana for 
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the personal medical purposes of the patient upon the written or oral recommendation or approval 

of a physician." Health & Sa£ Code§ 11362.5, subd. (d). A physician in California cannot "be 

punished, or denied any right or privilege, for having recommended marijuana to a patient for 

medical purposes." Health & Sa£ Code§ 11362.5, subd. (c). However, there is no provision 

allowing for marijuana to be dispensed by a pharmacy. 

CAUSE FOR D.ENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Intent to Compound and Dispense Illegal Drug Products) 

17. Respondent's applications are subject to denial under Code sections 480 and 4300(c) 

in that Respondent is attempting to violate federal and state laws governing pharmacy by applying 

for a permit to operate a pharmacy to dispense drugs that are not approved by the federal or state 

governments for sale in California, as set forth in paragraphs 14 and 15 above, in violation of Code 

section 4301, subparagraph (o). The circumstances are as follows: 

a. Respondent represented on his applications and in further correspondence with 

Board staff that, ifgranted a permit, he would operate a pharmacy to compound and cultivate 

medical herbal cannabis drug products and to dispense those products to patients, which is in 

violation of federal and state law. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

I. Denying the applications of Gary Gray Phmmacist dba ComPLEX for a Community 

Pharmacy Permit and a Sterile Compounding Pharmacy License; 

2. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED Jj_/2.-:r} ~--···--··-· I~ 

Execu · fficer 
Board of Phannacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

SA2014118304 
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